ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVMM TTEE
April 12, 2001
8:14 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative John Coghill, Chair
Representati ve Jeannette Janes
Representati ve Hugh Fate
Representative Gary Stevens
Representative Peggy W I son
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Joe Hayes

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 17

"An Act relating to the capital projects fund, to distribution
of nmoney in the earnings reserve account of the Al aska permanent
fund to the capital projects fund and to the dividend fund at
the end of fiscal year 2001, and to increasing the anmount of
permanent fund dividends for calendar year 2001; and providing
for an effective date.”

- MOVED HB 17 FROM COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 200
"An Act establishing July 3 as Drunk Driving Victinms Renenbrance
Day. "

- MOVED CSHB 200( STA) FROM COWM TTEE

CS FOR SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 17( STA)

Relating to requesting that President Bush renounce and reverse
Cinton Admnistration anti-gun-ownership policies and reorient
the United States Departnent of Justice towards policies that
accurately reflect the intent of the Second Amendnent to the
United States Constitution to grant individual Americans the
right to keep and bear arnms, was engrossed, signed by the
President and Secretary and transmtted to the House for
consi derati on.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 12, 2001



- MOVED HCS CSSJR 17(STA) FROM COW TTEE

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 65(FIN)
"An Act requiring a study regarding equal pay for equal work of
certain state enpl oyees."

- MOVED HCS CSSB 65(STA) FROM COWM TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 23
Advocating the retention of the electoral college systemin its
present form

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED TO 4/ 17
HOUSE BI LL NO. 189

"An Act repealing statutory provisions relating to term limts
and termlimt pledges."

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED TO 4/ 19

HOUSE BI LL NO. 20

"An Act relating to state aid to nunicipalities and certain
other recipients, and for the village public safety officer
program relating to nunicipal dividends; relating to the public
safety foundation program and providing for an effective date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 17

SHORT TI TLE: CAPI TAL PRQJ/ DI STRI B. OF PERM FUND | NC
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) WHI TAKER

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on
01/ 08/ 01 0028 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 29/ 00
01/ 08/ 01 0028 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
01/ 08/ 01 0028 (H) STA, FIN
04/ 10/ 01 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
04/ 10/ 01 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( STA)
04/ 12/ 01 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 200
SHORT TI TLE: DRUNK DRI VI NG VI CTI M5 REMEMBRANCE DAY

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 12, 2001



SPONSOR( S): JUDI Cl ARY
Jrn-Date Jrn- Page
03/19/01 0650
03/19/01 0650
04/ 05/ 01

04/ 05/ 01

04/ 05/ 01

04/ 10/ 01

04/ 10/ 01

04/ 12/ 01

BILL: SJR 17

SHORT TI TLE: FEDERAL GUN PQOLI Cl ES
SPONSOR( S) :

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page
02/ 28/ 01 0536
02/ 28/ 01 0536
03/ 20/ 01

03/ 20/ 01

03/ 21/01 0752
03/ 21/01 0753
03/ 21/01 0753
03/ 21/01 0753
03/ 28/ 01

03/ 28/ 01

03/ 29/ 01 0858
03/ 29/ 01 0865
03/ 29/ 01 0865
03/ 29/ 01 0865
03/ 29/ 01 0865
03/ 29/ 01 0866
03/ 29/ 01 0868
03/ 29/ 01 0868
03/ 30/ 01 0781
03/ 30/ 01 0781
03/ 30/ 01 0794
04/ 12/ 01

HOUSE STA COW TTEE

SENATOR(S) DONLEY

~—

IIT32IT =

(S)

(S)
(S)
(S

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
STA
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( STA)
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Schedul ed But Not Heard
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
STA
STA AT 3:00 PM BELTZ 211
Moved CS(STA) CQut of
Comm ttee
M NUTE( STA)
STA RPT CS 2DP 2NR SAME TI TLE
DP: THERRI AULT, PHI LLI PS;
NR: PEARCE, DAVI S
FN1: ZERQ S. STA)
RLS AT 10: 45 AM FAHRENKAMP
203
M NUTE( RLS)
RULES TO CALENDAR 3/29/01
READ THE SECOND TI ME
STA CS ADOPTED UNAN CONSENT
ADVANCED TO THI RD READI NG
UNAN CONSENT
READ THE THI RD Tl ME CSSJR
17( STA)
PASSED Y18 N1 Al
TRANSM TTED TO (H)
VERSI ON:  CSSJR 17( STA)
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
STA
CROSS SPONSOR(S): CROFT
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

April 12, 2001



BILL: SB 65
SHORT TI TLE: PAY EQUI TY FOR STATE EMPLOYEES
SPONSOR(S):  SENATOR(S) DONLEY

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

02/01/01 0246 (S READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/01/01 0246 (S STA, FIN

02/ 08/ 01 0313 (S COSPONSOR('S): WARD

02/ 09/ 01 0327 (S COSPONSOR('S): COADERY

02/ 13/01 (S STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 13/ 01 (S Moved Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( STA)

02/ 14/ 01 0367 (S STA RPT 4DP 1NR

02/ 14/ 01 0367 (S DP: THERRI AULT, HALFORD,
PEARCE, DAVI S;

02/ 14/ 01 0367 (S NR: PHI LLI PS

02/ 14/ 01 0367 (S FN1: (ADV

02/ 14/ 01 0374 (S COSPONSOR(S): DAVI S, ELLIS,
THERRI AULT,

02/ 14/ 01 0374 (S ELTON, LI NCOLN

02/ 23/ 01 (S FI N AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532

02/ 26/ 01 (S FI N AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532

02/ 26/ 01 (S Heard & Held
M NUTE( FI N)

03/09/01 (S FI N AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532

03/09/01 (S Bills Previously
Hear d/ Schedul ed

03/13/01 0633 (S FIN RPT CS 4DP 5NR NEW TI TLE

03/13/01 0633 (S DP: DONLEY, KELLY, W LKEN,
WARD;

03/13/01 0633 (S NR: GREEN, AUSTERMAN,
HOFFMAN, OLSON,

03/13/01 0633 (S LEMAN

03/13/01 0633 (S FN1: (ADV

03/13/01 (S FI N AT 9:45 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532

03/13/01 (S Moved CS(FIN) Qut of
Comm ttee

03/13/01 (S M NUTE( FI N)

03/ 20/ 01 (S RLS AT 10: 45 AM FAHRENKAMWP
203

03/ 20/ 01 (S M NUTE( RLS)

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 12, 2001



03/ 22/ 01 (S) RLS AT 10: 45 AM FAHRENKAMP

203

03/ 22/ 01 (S) M NUTE( RLS)

03/ 22/ 01 (S) M NUTE( RLS)

03/ 23/ 01 0784 (S) RULES TO CALENDAR 3/ 23/ 01

03/ 23/ 01 0784 (S) FN2: (S. RLS/ ADM)

03/ 23/ 01 0787 (S) READ THE SECOND TI ME

03/ 23/ 01 0787 (S) FIN CS ADOPTED UNAN CONSENT

03/ 23/ 01 0787 (S) COSPONSOR( S) :  PEARCE

03/ 23/ 01 0787 (S) ADVANCED TO THI RD READI NG
UNAN CONSENT

03/ 23/ 01 0787 (S) READ THE THI RD TI ME CSSB
65( FI N)

03/ 23/ 01 0788 (S) PASSED Y17 NL E2

03/ 23/ 01 0792 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 23/ 01 0792 (S) VERSI ON:  CSSB 65( FI N)

03/ 26/ 01 0721 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME -
REFERRALS

03/ 26/ 01 0721 (H) STA, FIN

03/ 26/ 01 0737 (H CROSS SPONSOR(S): KERTTULA

04/ 06/ 01 0891 (H CROSS SPONSOR(S): FATE

04/ 09/ 01 0912 (H) CROSS SPONSOR(S): GUESS,
MOGUI RE

04/ 12/ 01 0996 (H) CROSS SPONSOR(S): W LSON,
STEVENS

04/ 12/ 01 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

LORI BACKES, Staff

to Representative Ji mWitaker

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room41l1l

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Representative
Wi t aker, sponsor of HB 17.

JIM KELLY, Director of Comrunications

Al aska Per manent Fund Corporation

P. O. Box 25500

Juneau, AK 99802-5500

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 17.

SENATOR DAVE DONLEY

Al aska State Legislature
Capi tol Building, Room 508
Juneau, Al aska 99801

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 12, 2001



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of SIJR 17 and SB 65.

DAVE STEWART, Personnel Manager

Di vi si on of Personnel

Department of Adm nistration

P. O Box 110201

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0201

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 65.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-38, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR JOHN COGHI LL called the House State Affairs Standing
Committee nmeeting to order at 8:14 a.m Representatives Coghill
Fate, Stevens, and WIlson were present at the call to order
Representatives James, Crawford, and Hayes arrived as the
meeting was in progress.

HB 17 - CAPI TAL PRQJ/ DI STRIB. OF PERM FUND | NC

Nunmber 0097

CHAI R COGHI LL announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO. 17, "An Act relating to the capital projects
fund, to distribution of nbney in the earnings reserve account
of the Al aska permanent fund to the capital projects fund and to
the dividend fund at the end of fiscal year 2001, and to
i ncreasing the anount of permanent fund dividends for cal endar
year 2001; and providing for an effective date."

Number 0133

LORI BACKES, Staff to Representative Witaker, Al aska State
Legi slature, cane forward to testify on behalf of Representative
Ji m Whi t aker, sponsor of HB 17. She noted that the audi o-visual
presentation on HB 17 that Representative Witaker gave at the
| ast commttee neeting was available in both hard copy and on
di sk. She pointed out a correction needed on the slide titled
"Capital Projects Fund." The figure on the second Iine,
$160, 712,500, should be changed to $211,500,000 to nmatch the
ot her updated anmounts shown throughout, she expl ai ned.

M5. BACKES said that HB 17 does not take the noney from the

earnings reserve account itself. "This takes the earnings from
the earnings reserve account," she said. "The permanent fund

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 12, 2001



has its own earnings, and the earnings reserve account 1is
invested a little bit differently; and this takes the earnings
for one year fromthe earnings reserve account.”

Number 0339

CHAIR COGHI LL noted for the record that Representative Crawford
had joined the neeting. He then asked how one determ nes the
paraneters of the earnings of the earnings reserve.

M5. BACKES said she <could not help nuch wth financial
expl anations, but knew that the earnings reserve account is the
noney |eft over after the pernmanent fund has been inflation-
proofed and after the dividend has been paid. The remai nder
goes into a separate earnings reserve account. That noney is
invested separately from the permanent fund, and so generates
its own incone. "That's the income we're talking about,"” she
sai d. "It has nothing to do wth the direct incone of the
per mnent fund."

Number 0433

CHAI R COGHI LL asked if he understood correctly that under HB 17,
the earnings part of the earnings reserve would be divided in
hal f .

M5. BACKES said that is what would be done for one year. As HB
17 is witten, half of that noney would go to the capital
projects fund and the other half wuld be paid out as a
suppl ement to the permanent fund dividend. She said the anount
of that supplement woul d be about $360 per dividend.

M5. BACKES added that sone |egislators have suggested using the
noney for a municipal dividend instead of supplenenting the
di vidend, she said. That would require anending HB 17 so that
half of the noney [the earnings of the earnings reserve] would
go into the capital projects fund and the other half would be
di spersed to comunities based on their popul ation.

CHAIR COGHI LL supposed that would be simlar to the plan
proposed in HB 20.

M5. BACKES said what is being discussed was simlar in concept,
but that she did not know the particul ars.

CHAI R COGHI LL asked how much woul d be provided per capita.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 12, 2001



MS. BACKES said she did not know how the noney would be divided
per capita if it were given out as a nunicipal dividend. " f
it's a supplenent to the dividend payout, it would be $360 per
person," she said.

CHAIR COGHI LL asked if that was the anpunt anticipated in this
year only.

MS. BACKES said that was correct, enphasizing that HB 17 is a
one-year bill

Nunber 0624

CHAIR COGHI LL said he wanted the commttee to note that "this is
a one-tine shot at trying it to see howit works."

He also noted that Representative Hayes had joined the neeting,
and asked himif his bill had passed.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES replied, "Absolutely, M. Chair."

Nunmber 0666

CHAIR COGHI LL observed that on page 1, line 11 of HB 17, "you
have up to 35 percent of the balance ... to be appropriated for
projects located in a single municipality.” He wondered why the

bill said "up to 35 percent."

M5. BACKES said it was a positive way of putting a limt on how
much each community mght receive in the form of appropriations
for <capital projects, and that the legislature has done
sonething simlar in the past.

Nunber 0727

CHAIR COGHI LL said he was trying to think of the policy call
that will have to be nade in the House State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee. "The earnings reserve has never been used in a

manner such as this,"” he said, "so this would begin a precedent,
| think, that would be very significant; sonething that the
| egi sl ature's been very reluctant to do in the past. And |
guess the [indisc.] from you folks is to try it for one year,
see how it goes?"

M5. BACKES again pointed out that HB 17 is not wusing the
earnings reserve, but the inconme from the earnings reserve, "so
it's alnost two to three tinmes renoved from ... getting anywhere
near the permanent fund," she said.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 12, 2001



Nunmber 0805

JIM KELLY, Director of Conmmunications, Alaska Permnent Fund
Corporation, canme forward to testify.

CHAI R COGHI LL expl ai ned that he had been asking Ms. Backes about
the paraneters of the earnings of the earning reserve and how
that relates to realized and unrealized gains. "Can you give us
alittle description on that?" he asked.

MR. KELLY expl ai ned:

There are two parts to the permanent fund, there's the
princi pal and there's everything else. Anything above
t he anobunt of noney that you have appropriated to the
principal -- which is the constitutionally dedicated
oi | revenues, the little piece of additional ly
statutorily appropriated oil revenues, i nfl ation-
proofing, and then the special appropriations that the
| egislature has made | think seven tinmes over the
years -- that's $20.2 billion.

Everything in the fund that you see that's over $20.2

billion is in the earnings reserve account. It is
i ncone. Some of it is realized; sone of it 1is
unreal i zed. But all of the noney that we nake every

day flows into the earnings reserve account, whether
it's an interest paynent that we receive from the
federal government or whether its a dividend that we
receive from one of the holdings of the 4,000
conpani es that you own around the world, whether it's
cash flow from an apartnment building that the fund
owmns in Mam, Fl ori da, or whet her it's the
appreciation in -- or the depreciation in -- the val ue
of any of those assets from any given date, that all
shows up in the accounting for the earnings reserve
account .

Nunmber 0925

So if the fund is $25.2 billion today, which | think
it's pretty close to that, that neans that there's

about $5 billion in the earnings reserve account. W
project in the future that the earnings reserve
account will earn 8 percent, 8.25 percent return. So

when we did the analysis of HB 17, we calculated an

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 12, 2001



8.25 [percent] return on the earnings reserve account
and then followed the prescription of the bill and
split it the two ways and paid it out.

One thing that's interesting to note is that ... the
[ Permanent Fund Corporation] board has a proposal for
a b5 percent payout Ilimtation, a constitutiona

anendnent, which is really intended to inflation-proof
the fund permanently, but also to provide a
sustai nable incone stream to the state. And if you

| ook [at] that over a 20-year period, the nunbers turn
out to be just about the sane as they do with HB 17

and 1'Il get into that. But basically what |'m saying
is that the anmount of noney that's being tal ked about
is pretty consistent with being able to maintain the
pur chasi ng power of the fund. Over 20 years, under HB
17, you'd end up with a fund that was about $51

billion, twce the size that it is today. Meanwhi | e,
you wll have produced over that period of tine
sonmething like $57 billion worth of total investnent
return.

Nunber 1036

It's going to take $20 billion of that to keep the
fund whol e against inflation, just as in the past it's
taken $7 billion to keep the fund whole to today. So
that |eaves $36 billion, which is about how much HB 17
envi si ons bei ng avail abl e.

Number 1060
O that, the dividend program status quo wll take
approxinmately $28 billion, so that leaves ... $8
billion or sonmething like that for other uses. Thi s

particular proposal shifts some of that into the
dividend fund and it provides sone of it for capital
projects. But the long and the short of it is that it
does | eave the fund basically in a whole position over
a period of tinme and it has provided for billions of
dollars of new permanent fund income to be used for
the benefit of the Al askan econony w thout sacrificing
the fund or the real and the nomnal growh in the
di vi dend.

Nunber 1121

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- April 12, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked, "So if we |look at HB 17 and | ook at
what we're doi ng now?"

MR. KELLY said the difference is that ... if one did nothing
with the income besides the dividends and inflation-proofing,
the fund would grow to $64 billion, with $14 billion in the
earni ngs reserve account.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON added, "I neant as we keep taking sone of
it awnay."

MR. KELLY asked what she neant by "taking it away."

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked, "Don't we take sone of this each
time ...7?2"

MR. KELLY responded, "Ch, you nmean for HB 177"

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON realized, " Ch, it's t he CBR
(Constitutional Budget Reserve) that we keep taking ...; K"
Number 1181

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said, "I'm a Ilittle confused here, Jim
because you're mxing [HB] 17 with what you were trying to
achi eve before, which is a constitutional anendnment. I"d Iike
to stick to this bill and ... what wll happen, or whether we
should even give ... back to the dividend, or whether ... it
should go to the communities..., and whether or not these
figures ... that have been projected are ... valid figures."
Nunber 1248

MR. KELLY said HB 17 pays out noney in excess of what statutory
inflation proofing requires. There is additional noney. The
Per manent Fund Corporation estinmates that there will be $175

mllion to $300 million a year available, and that nunber wl]l
grow as the nmarket value of the fund grows.

MR. KELLY said the way that noney ought to be spent is not
sonething the trustees [of the Pernmanent Fund Corporation] would
ever get involved wth deciding. "We're only interested in
produci ng the noney...," he said.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said what he wanted had to know was that the

$423 nmillion from which the other figures derive is a good
figure for the incone fromthe earnings reserve account.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 12, 2001



MR. KELLY confirmed that it was, [depending on what happens in
the current, final quarter of the fiscal year].

Nunmber 1324

REPRESENTATI VE FATE asked about the projected earning of about 8
percent on the earnings reserve account: "In light of the
"bear market' that we're having now, is that still a wvalid
figure?"

MR KELLY said it was, and explained how it is calculated.
Number 1401

CHAIR COGHI LL asked if, in light of the bad narket year, the HB
17 proposal is a valid one to be discussing right now.

MR. KELLY said the projected earnings are based on Decenber 31
[of 2000] nunbers, and he thinks they are as good as anything
t he Permanent Fund Corporation could produce.

Nunber 1448

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked a question related to a presentation
the Permanent Fund Corporation had made at a Rotary dub
nmeet i ng. There was a chart that showed the ups and downs [ of
the stock market] over the last 75 years, and Representative
Janes understood that 8-8.5 percent is the historical anount of
grow h that can be expected froma fund over the long term

MR, KELLY said it is about 8 percent, including 3 percent for
inflation and 5 percent for payout.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked if that was how the Pernmanent Fund

Corporation canme up with the 5 percent payout, "because you
assune that the average is going to be 3 percent on inflation
and that's going to keep it ... inflation-proofed over the |ong

period of tinme?"

MR. KELLY said that was correct, based on the asset allocation
the fund has now.

Number 1570

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES recalled that in the early 1990's, the rate
of inflation was so high that legislators worried that if they

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 12, 2001



first inflation-proofed, there wuld be nothing Ileft for
di vi dends, and m ght not even be enough for inflation proofing.
"Could we get there again?" she asked.

Nunmber 1656

MR, KELLY said yes, and that is why the board is suggesting that
statutory inflation proofing isn't the best way to go because it
noves that noney from the earnings reserve account, where it is
avai lable for appropriation, and puts it into the principal,

where it's not. And in a year like this one, in which the
Permanent Fund has lost $2 billion of noney, that's not a
probl em because there is still $5 billion in the earnings
reserve account. "But you have a year like this again and

anot her year |like that again, then you're into a situation where
you do not have the ability to make a dividend paynent, nuch
| ess the paynent that's envisioned in an HB 17," he said.

Number 1690
CHAIR COGHI LL asked, "Is this going to be problematic wth
regard to that? ... If we're going to nake a policy call, we

need to make sure that as we proceed in this, that they're not
going to be in conpetition, but that they could work together."

MR. KELLY replied, "It's really a public policy call. ... Al

of the noney in the earnings reserve account is available for
the legislature to spend. If you're going to continue the
current system ... the best protection you have against bad

markets is a lot of noney in the earnings reserve account.
Anything you do to take noney out of that reserve account,
whether it's putting it into the principal for inflation
proofing or whether it's paying it out for purposes of state
governnment, dimnishes that and increases the risk down the
road.... That's sort of a flaw that the trustees are trying to
overcone. "

Number 1760

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said he would really like to try to focus on
HB 17. "It looks to nme like we're not going to really dimnish
the earnings reserve," he said. "W're taking the earnings off
of it, unless you account for a small anmount of that that m ght
go back into the earnings reserve." He noted that HB 17 is a
"one-time deal" that provides much-needed funds for capital
proj ects. How to divide the other portion of that revenue from
the earnings reserve account, "whether it's going to go to the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- April 12, 2001



municipalities or whether it's going to go back into the
dividend, is sonmething that ... perhaps should be westled with
alittle bit" [in the State Affairs Commttee]. Fromthe public
policy standpoint, he thinks HB 17 has a lot of nerit and that
it would be better to let the finance conmttee go through the
nunber crunchi ng.

Number 1836

CHAIR COGHI LL said he think the policy call that the commttee
wants to make is, "Shall we use the earnings of the earnings
reserve?"

Nunber 1847

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON requested clarification. "Wth this bill
we take the earning fromthe earnings reserve...," she observed.
"Does the bill inflation-proof the earnings reserve account
before we do that?"

M5. BACKES said it does not.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if she knew what difference it would
make if we did that.

M5. BACKES said it would, of course, depend on the |evel of
inflation proofing that was decided upon, but beyond that, she
didn't know the effect it would have. "I think that it
certainly would be a policy call if +the Ilegislature is
interested in inflation-proofing the earnings reserve when the
permanent fund is inflation-proofed.”

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON nentioned that the earning of the earnings
reserve woul d be a changi ng nunber all the tine.

CHAIR COCGHI LL said he thought the question she was raising was
whether to inflation-proof the earnings reserve rather than the
corpus of the fund, which is a policy question HB 17 does not
addr ess.

Number 1957

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES commented that HB 17 is a one-tinme thing,
and it appears to her that the sanme amount that HB 17 would put
into the capital projects fund [$211, 500, 000] could be
appropriated today without this piece of legislation. "W don't
need, this," she said, "if ... we are willing as a legislature

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 12, 2001



to take noney from the earnings reserve...." She said the
calculation is inportant and the presentation shows that the
noney would not conme from the earnings reserve, but from its
earnings, and only use half of that. The sane noney could be
appropriated by a sinple ngjority vote.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES added that she thinks the 5 percent payout
makes a lot of financial sense over the long term "But ... |
don't want to deal wth that wuntil we deal wth everything
el se," she said; "because it's all an integral part of a |ong-
term plan, and I'm not willing to set aside 5 percent of the
mar ket value w thout doing sonething with the dividend program
whi ch woul d take at |east 80 percent of that and ... [leave very
little left to use] in balancing our budget over the long term™

Number 2099

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked Ms. Backes to explain why the bil
is being introduced. He said it would be his guess that the
sponsor intends to bring about a policy debate about whether the
| egi sl ature should use the permanent fund, the earnings, or the
earni ngs of the earnings.

M5. BACKES said the inpetus for HB 17 cones from the nandate in
Article 9, Section 16 of the state Constitution. That mandat e
was put there by anendnent in the early 1980s, when the state
was getting a lot of nobney and there was concern that it was

being spent wthout a great deal of self-restraint. The
anendnent set an appropriation limt, which the |egislature has
never come near reaching. However, within this limt, it also

states that at |east one-third of the noney the legislature
appropriates shall be reserved for capital projects and | oan

appropriations. The legislature has never conme close to
designating one-third of its appropriations for capi tal
projects, she said. In 1983, the state attorney general issued

an opinion saying he thought the anendnent was anbi guous and
that the courts wouldn't hold the legislature to the provisions

of the anendnent. There is a second opinion from Legislative
Legal Services that directly contradicts the attorney general's
opi ni on, whi ch has never been chal | enged in court.

"Representative \Witaker believes that we ought to challenge it
in some fashion because the legislature does have a nandate
within the constitution to appropriate one-third," M. Backes
sai d. "This bill doesn't appropriate one-third, but it does
bring us a little bit closer.”

Number 2234

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- April 12, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE FATE said he agreed with Representative Janes
about the legislature being able by majority vote to use the
earning of the earnings reserve, "That, to me, is basically
what this does,” he said. He has seen the presentation and
thinks it is the right step "because, as everybody knows, we're
in the process right now of trying to fornulate sone fiscal
policy for the State of Al aska," he said. "Al so, as everybody
knows, we are way behind on capital inprovenent including
deferred maintenance.... So this, to me, is a first and valid
step in trying to address the capital problens that we have in
the state.” As for the other part, the other half of the
revenues from the earnings reserve account, he said he was
undeci ded about whether that should be used as a dividend or to
provi de revenue to communities. He said he hopes that HB 17
will get a majority vote that will start the process of capita
i mprovenent once nore.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES addressed the constitutional anmendnment and
the attorney general's opinion. She said she agrees with the
attorney general that the bill is very convoluted and could be
chal | enged. She said the constitutional budget reserve was
anot her convol uted constitutional anendnment that ended up being
chal l enged in court. The decision was that the anendnment was,
i ndeed, convoluted, and that the purpose of the constitutional
budget reserve was to allow the legislature, if it had |ess
noney available in the current year than in the previous year's
budget, to tap the constitutional budget reserve account with a
majority vote. For any other reason that the |egislature wanted
to spend noney from that account, a three-fourths vote was
needed. And regardless of how the expenditure was approved or
the noney used, at the end of the follow ng year, whatever is
left for appropriation is swept into the constitutional reserve
to pay it back. "Pulling all the noney out of the bank to pay
back the constitutional budget reserve at the end of a fisca
year is absurd," she said.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said the court also ruled that when the
| egi sl ature det erm nes t hat t he noney avai l abl e for
appropriation is |less that what was spent in the |last year, "you

count the earnings of the permanent fund reserve because
it's available for appropriation. But when it cones to June 30
and tinme to sweep all the noney back in to pay it back, you
don't count the earnings reserve of the permanent fund. That
and other things about the constitutional anendnent need fixing,
she said. She thinks the legislature needs to do that as part
of a long-term fiscal plan and also to have a spending limt.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- April 12, 2001



An attorney general's opinion is the law until sonmeone
challenges it in court, and only the court can nake that final
deci si on, she said.

Nunmber 2533

CHAIR COGHI LL asked Ms. Backes "how far down the road this goes
to a challenge on that."

MS. BACKES was not sure she understood the question.

CHAI R COGHI LL asked, "Does this go over the one-third? Does it
stay under the one-third? Are we even going to cone up to what
the attorney general's opinion is on this?"

M5. BACKES said HB 17 does not appropriate one-third, but
"brings us a little bit closer.™ She further expl ai ned:

The attorney general's opinion doesn't deal so much
with how appropriate it is to set the appropriations
limt through this anmendnment, and it really doesn't
deal with the constitutional budget reserve. The
question that Representative Witaker has in the
attorney general's opinion deals wth just the
sentence that says, "Wthin this limt, at |east one-
third shall be reserved for capital projects and | oan
appropriations.” The attorney general believed that
the statement within this limt was anbi guous enough
to state in his opinion that if the |egislature never
reached that appropriation limt. That, by the way, |
think would have been $6.1 billion last year for the
| egi slature to appropriate.... If we never reach that
limt, we don't have to appropriate a third for
capital projects. That was his interpretation of this
anmendnent, and that is the part of his opinion that
Representative Witaker disagrees with as well as in
our | egal opinion from Tam Cook.

Number 2623

CHAIR COGHI LL said he wanted to be very clear that HB 17 is
asserting that the legislature should get as close to one-third
as it can, and that it is not going to challenge the attorney
general s opinion because it does not appropriate nore than one-
t hi rd.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 12, 2001



M5. BACKES said she did not see and certainly hasn't heard
anything from the attorney general's office to indicate that
there would be a challenge on HB 17 based on the attorney
general ' s opi nion.

Nunmber 2660

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD commented that he had heard sone really
interesting conversation here this norning and would really |ike
to discuss it over pizza some night, but he thinks the
di scussion is getting fairly far afield fromHB 17. "Wlat this
seens to do is it uses sone of the earnings from the permanent
fund. Even though it comes from the earnings of the earnings

of the reserve account, it's still noney from the pernanent
fund,"” he said. As he was going door-to-door canpaigning, he
heard repeatedly that people do not want to see the budget gap
filled wth earnings from the permanent fund wthout a
conprehensive fiscal plan, and he agreed with that.

Nunber 2725

REPRESENTATI VE FATE noved to report HB 17 out of commttee with
i ndi vidual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, HB 17 was reported from the House
State Affairs Standing Commttee.

HB 200 - DRUNK DRI VI NG VI CTI M5 REMEMBRANCE DAY

Nunber 2778

CHAI R COGHI LL announced that the next item of business before
the coomttee would be HOUSE BILL NO. 200, "An Act establishing
July 3 as Drunk Driving Victinms Renenbrance Day." He put before
the commttee a commttee substitute [Version (]

REPRESENTATI VE FATE noved the adoption of [Version C] as the
wor ki ng docunent before the commttee.

Number 2807

CHAIR COGHILL said he took out the portion of HB 200 mandati ng
that the flag be lowered, as it is his personal feeling that the
section would set a precedent that he was not sure he wanted to
set. He explained that he did not want to dimnish the
remenbrance of the drunk driving victins, "but every other tine
we |lower the flag by statute in Alaska, it's wth regard to
veterans or police who have lost their life in service." He

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 12, 2001



said that he does not want to dimnish the tragedy of the | oss
of other wvictinms, but "I think if we start down the road of
lowering the flag for every one, we wll end up dimnishing
that," he said. So he was reluctant to put the flag lowering in
statute as HB 200 proposes. Instead, his CS asks the governor
to make a proclamation to commenorate Drunk Driving Victins
Renmenbrance Day, and the governor can |lower the flag as he or
she wi shes.

Nunmber 2869

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD obj ected to adopting the CS. He said he
thinks the flag lowering does not dimnish anything and raises
awareness, and that the original bill is the proper way to
menorialize the victins of drunk driving.

Nunmber 2895

CHAIR COGHI LL said his intent was not to dishonor anybody, but
to raise the level of honor by making the governor do it by
procl amati on. He said he thought that would result in better
publicity than doing so by statute.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said she tended to agree wth Chair
Coghi | I. She said she did not wish to denean the people who
have worked so hard on HB 200 and to whom it means so nmuch. But
she thinks there are a lot of ways that would be nore effective
than a statutory flag lowering to get out the nmessage of Drunk
Driving Victins Renmenbrance Day. "I think the proclamation does
it," she said. She thinks if the people who are behind HB 200
request it, once the legislature has this day set in statute, it
is likely that the governor would | ower the flag.

TAPE 01-38, SIDE B

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES al so concurred with Chair Coghill that the
governor's making the proclamation in a press relapse wll
pronpt nore nedia coverage than if the legislature mandated the
flag-lowering "and it just happened.” She said she supports the
CS and hopes the proponents will be confortable with this way of
comenorating their |oss.

Nunber 2915

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD asked:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 12, 2001



VWhat's wong with us making a stand and making this
statenent here that we believe that ... drunk driving
is wong and do everything in our power to make that
statenent as strongly as we possibly can? Wiy woul d
we have to wait on the governor to lower the flag?
Wy can't we as a legislature, as a policy-nmaking
group, say that this is sonmething that we feel rises
to the level that we need to noralize it and nake
peopl e aware of it. | believe that this is the [ east
that we can do.

CHAIR COGHI LL said he appreciates that and thinks it is an
excel l ent point. "W are asking the governor to make a
proclamation,” he said, "and | think that ... the precedent that
|"'m reluctant to set could eventually dimnish that very thing
that you're trying to do."

Nunber 2872
REPRESENTATI VE W LSON sai d:

This is a very difficult decision to make just for the
fact that we don't want to dimnish in any way what's
happened and the fact that the people that have cone
here and worked real hard to the end that this could
happen. But | do agree with you. Right now, the only

time the flag has been lowered ... is when it's
connected with sone kind of a veteran type thing,
right?

CHAIR COGHILL clarified that the flag is |owered by statute only
for that type of observance. However, there are many other
times that it is lowered by proclamation for a variety of
di fferent people and events, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON al so expressed concern about setting a
pr ecedent . Wil e she acknow edged that renenbrance of drunk
driving victinse was a very good reason for lowering the flag
she pointed out that other groups could request the sane thing
and "you could see the flag lowered so many tinmes that
people don't even think it's a big deal."” While she understands
that to be the policy issue, she said she is really torn because
she can see both sides.

Nunber 2772

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 12, 2001



CHAIR COGHILL concurred that it is an enotional issue. "We're
doing it over people who have at random been killed and who have
beconme true victins," he said. He repeated that it is not
intent to dimnish that at all.

Nunber 2740

REPRESENTATI VE FATE noved to report HB 200 as anended out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD nai ntai ned his objection to the CS.

A roll call vote was taken on the CS. Representatives Fate,
Janes, Stevens, WIlson, and Coghill voted for the CS to HB 200.
Representatives Crawford and Hayes voted against the SC for HB
200. Therefore, the CS to HB 200 was adopt ed.

There being no objection, HB 200 as anended noved out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmttee. [ CSHB 200( STA) noved
fromcomittee.]

CHAI R COGHI LL declared a brief at-ease at 9:07 a.m The neeting
was called back to order at 9:12 a.m

SJR 17 - FEDERAL GUN POLI Cl ES

Nunmber 2661

CHAI R COGHI LL announced that the next order of business before
the commttee would be CS FOR SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO
17(STA), Relating to requesting that President Bush renounce and
reverse Clinton Admnistration anti-gun-ownership policies and
reorient the United States Departnent of Justice towards
policies that accurately reflect the intent of the Second
Amendnment to the United States Constitution to grant individual
Anericans the right to keep and bear arns.

SENATOR DAVE DONLEY, Alaska State Legislature, canme forward to
testify as sponsor of SJR 17. He called attention to an
encl osure in nenbers' packets pertaining to a di scussion between
a United States attorney and a federal judge regarding the
governnent's position on the neaning of the second Anendnent to
the United States Constitution. He said when he read that
transcript, he was convinced that it was appropriate for the
Al aska State Legislature to ask President Bush to change that
policy on the part of the Justice Departnent of the United

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- April 12, 2001



St at es. The packet also contains a letter from the Solicitor
General of the United States confirmng that it was the policy
of the Justice Departnent wunder the previous President's
admnistration that the Second Amendnent guaranteed absolutely
no right to citizens to keep and bear arns; that it only neant
that nmenbers of the National Guard could keep and bear arns and
even they were not allowed to privately own guns, but only
al lowed to keep themat the National Guard arnory.

Nunmber 2598

SENATOR DONLEY said he thinks that position is contrary to
scholarly interpretations of the Second Amendnent and to what
nost Anericans believe it neans. He recalled that a few years
ago, Alaskans overwhelmngly voted in favor of anending the
state Constitution to very clearly state that there is an
i ndividual right to keep and bear arns. He explained that SJR
17 calls for President Bush to try to reverse that policy on the
part of the Justice Departnment and "to nore accurately recognize
the true neaning of the Second Anmendnent of the United States
Constitution.™

CHAI R COGHI LL asked Senator Donley if he thinks the resolution
is being sent to enough people. He noted that it lists the
menbers of Congress, the President, and the Vice President.

SENATOR DONLEY said he thought it was the correct list of people
and that he also was going to send it to state |egislatures
around the nation because he thinks it is a national issue and
that it is appropriate to stick up for the rights of all
Aner i cans.

CHAI R COCGHI LL asked himif that was a conm tnent.

SENATOR DONLEY said yes, that it was his intent to send it to
the presiding officers of all the state |egislatures. If the
House State Affairs Standing Commttee wished to add that, he
thinks it would be appropriate.

Nunber 2514

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES noved to adopt that as a conceptua
amendnent .

CHAIR COGHI LL stated the conceptual anendnent as:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- April 12, 2001



"to send it to the presiding officer of each
| egi sl ative body in every other 49 states.”

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said she thought it should refer to
"of ficers".

There was no objection to the conceptual anendnent to CSSIR
17( STA).

Nunmber 2588

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES noved to report CSSJR 17(STA) as anended
out of conmmttee wth individual recommendations and the
acconpanyi ng zero fiscal note. There being no objection, HCS
CSSJR 17(STA) was noved from the House State Affairs Standing
Committee.

[ Although the notion that carried should have noved HCS CSSJR
17(STA) out of the House State Affairs Standing Conmittee, CSSJR
17(STA) was reported instead to the Chief Cerk as having noved
fromthe commttee.]

CHAIR COGH LL declared a brief at-ease at 9:15 a.m The
conmmittee was called back to order at 9:17 a.m

SB 65 - PAY EQU TY FOR STATE EMPLOYEES

Nunmber 2457

CHAIR COGHI LL announced that the next order of business before
the commttee would be CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 65(FIN), "An Act
requiring a study regarding equal pay for equal work of certain
state enpl oyees. "

SENATOR DAVE DONLEY cane forward to testify as sponsor of SB 65.
He explained that SB 65 calls for the state to perform a pay
equity study to determne if its current classification of state
enployees is in any way in violation of existing state or
federal |aw regarding equal pay for equal work. He noted that
al nost every year, there are news stories reporting that the
annual study by the Departnment of Administration shows that
wonen who work for state governnent are paid |less than nen.
"But what we don't know is why," he said, "and we don't know if
there is sone inproper reason why wonen are being paid | ess than

men on the average with state governnent." He said there are
many other reasons why, as an average, wonen mght justifiably
be paid less than nen, "but we wll never know whether the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- April 12, 2001



reason is an inproper reason unless we actually do a pay equity
study." Such studies already have been done by 24 other states
and the District of Colunbia. Al aska's Departnment  of
Adm ni stration believes that its classification systemis a good
one and that there is no discrimnation based on gender, he
sai d.

SENATOR DONLEY said SB 65 calls for a $50,000 study that would
be performed by a contractor through the Departnent of
Adm nistration to specifically examne whether there is any
discrimnation going on that would be in violation of existing
requi renents of equal pay for equal work. He noted that he is
trying to be very clear about equal pay for equal work because
there is termnology used in this area that can get very
confusing. He called attention to an analysis of termnology in
commttee packets and said there are three phrases comonly
used. There is "equal pay for sane work," which is actually
what he is trying to say, he said. There is "conparable work,"
which refers to a theory of overall equivalent value to society,
which is nore conplicated but has been studied by sone other
states. There is "equal pay for equal work,"” and that principle
requires equal conpensation for jobs that require substantially
the sanme skills, effort, and responsibility. That is actually
what Al aska |law and federal |aw requires. He enphasized that
the proposed study would not be a conparable work study, but an
equal pay for equal work study [which would enconpass equal pay
for same work] to make sure that Alaska is conplying wth
federal |aw

SENATOR DONLEY said he thinks it is the right thing to do. "W

have a perception that we nmay have a problem" he said. "The
Departnent of Admnistration is confident we don't have a
problem but ... the only way to let the public know for sure

that we're not inproperly discrimnating against wonen in state
enpl oynent is to performthis study."”

Number 2251

CHAIR COGH LL said based on his observation around the
| egislative halls, "it seens like some of us nen may be in
trouble.”

Nunmber 2240

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS observed that the [witten] description
of SB 65 nentions litigation, and he wondered if there had been
litigation against the state.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- April 12, 2001



SENATOR DONLEY said there had been a case alleging that nurses
in state enploynent were being discrimnated against unfairly.
The facts of the case were that nost of the nurses were wonen,
and that the state had another job called "physicians'

assistant” in which nost of the enployees were nen. The
physi ci ans' assistants were paid nore than nurses, but they were
doing virtually identical work, he said. The Human Rights [or

Equal Rights] Conm ssion found in favor of the nurses. The case
was appealed to the courts and the Suprene Court of the state
ruled in favor of the state, saying that they found
di stinguishing elements that justified differing pay rates.

Nunmber 2168

SENATOR DONLEY noted that the decision had been controversial,
and found it interesting that in the approximtely eight years
since then, the nunber of wonen physicians assistants has
increased and the pay of nurses has been raised so that it is
nore conparable. He said the Departnent of Adm nistration found
"that nurses had a pretty good argunent.™

SENATOR DONLEY said that is the only lawsuit in Alaska state
enpl oynment of which he knows; however, the issue has been "very
probl ematic" el sewhere. He described two types of states, those
whi ch have "just refused to do anything and their classification
systens weren't probably as a good as ours and they got sued and
it cost them a lot of noney." He directed attention to an
exanple in the packets conparing Mnnesota to Washington State.
In the latter, there was a suit that the state lost and "it cost
the state a lot of noney," he said. Qher states have done pay
equity studies and noved in a progressive way to solving the
problens they identified, and it's cost a lot less, he said. He
enphasized that Alaska's Departnent of Administration is
confident about its classification system and that he hopes the
study will put to rest the idea that there is discrimnation in
the state system

Number 2050
CHAIR COGHILL noted that the annual reports cone from the
Department of Labor, and he wondered if those reports addressed

the area of pay equity.

SENATOR DONLEY said they talk about the difference between what
men and wonmen on average are maki ng working for the state.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- April 12, 2001



CHAIR COGHI LL asked, "Just a general rule?

SENATOR DONLEY replied, "Yes, just on the average, the gender
difference.” He called attention to a one-page enclosure on the
gender gap in the packet.

CHAIR COGHI LL asked if the proposed study would |ook at the
gender gap in different categories.

SENATOR DONLEY expl ained that the study would identify those job
cl asses that are dom nated by one gender or the other, as those
are the suspect classes. It also would look for job classes
that are doing much the sanme type of work and conpare the job
descriptions with what enployees actually are doing to see if
there is any discrimnation based on gender.

Number 1931

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said when his wife was working as a
nurse in a hospital operating room in Louisiana, one of the
things they talked about was that the nmale nurses who cane
through the operating room seened to be on the "fast track."
Only about one in ten of the nurses was male, and nost of them
stayed just a short time before being pronoted to an
adm nistrative job. That seenmed to him to be a way of
discrimnating as well. He wondered if this study woul d address
that sort of thing.

SENATOR DONLEY said it is unlikely that this study would catch
that kind of a problem as that was a different area of the |aw.
He said he thought that 1in a situation |like the one
Representative Crawford described, there would be a strong
possibility of a case for the Equal R ghts Comm ssion based on
di scrimnation in pronotion.

Number 1807

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES observed that nany tines, there are nore
wonen or nore nmen in a particular job because nore people of
that gender apply for those jobs, and that doesn't nean that
there is discrimnation.

SENATOR DONLEY said that is correct. "But let's say there was a
femal e dominated class called Secretary One, and then there was
a mal e-dom nated class called Secretary Two. And we take a | ook
at it and we find that the Secretary Twos are doing the same job

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- April 12, 2001



as the Secretary Ones, then you've got a case for gender
di scrimnation."

CHAIR COGHILL noted for the record that at this point, the
adm nistration is saying that does not happen, yet there is a
public perception that it does. He thought what Senator Donl ey
was addressing was the public perception.

SENATOR DONLEY said that is correct.

CHAIR COGHI LL asked if the study would be nore of a blind study
t han sel f-exam nation

SENATOR DONLEY said vyes, if he correctly wunderstood Chair
Coghil1's term nol ogy.

CHAIR COGHILL clarified that he neant a study by a disinterested
party.

SENATOR DONLEY sai d yes.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked if while the study was conparing
enpl oyees' jobs are and the pay that they get, will it also |ook
at the qualifications required for the job. She has encountered
requi renents, such as education, for particular jobs that were
not really required for the work bei ng done.

SENATOR DONLEY said she was absolutely correct. VWhat the |aw
requires is equal pay for equal work, and if there is sone
illusory hurdle before a person gets into a particular job,

that's not right. It's what you're doing while you're there
that is significant. That is part of what this study could
exam ne.

CHAIR COGHI LL asked if there was anyone else to testify on SB
65. There being no response, he closed public testinony.

Number 1538
REPRESENTATI VE FATE REPRESENTATI VE noved to report SB 65 out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying

fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES obj ected to offer a possible anendnent. He
said he would like to confer with the bill's sponsor.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- April 12, 2001



CHAI R COGHI LL declared a brief at-ease at 9:35 a.m The neeting
was called back to order at 9:37 a.m He noted that a proposed
anmendnent had been passed out to comrittee nenbers by
Represent ati ve Hayes.

Nunber 1487

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES noved Amendnent 1.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES obj ected for purposes of discussion.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said he had received a neno from one of the
cosponsors of SB 65 who wanted to add sone |anguage if the

sponsor was anenable to it. He explained the anmendnent as
fol | ows:
Page 1, line 8, after "sexes",

I nsert "races"
Page 1, line 8,
Del ete "fennl e"
| nsert "worker"
Page 1, line 9, after "paid to",
Del ete "nal e"
| nsert "anot her"

Page 2, line 4, after "gender",
I nsert "or race"

Page 2, line 9, after "gender",
I nsert "or race"

Page 2, line 10, after "gender",
I nsert "or race"

Nunber 1402

CHAIR COGHI LL said the anendnent seened to himto significantly
change SB 65.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked if the "equal pay for equal work”
area of the | aw al so i ncludes bi as between races.

SENATOR DONLEY replied, "Yes."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- April 12, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked what if anything the amendnent woul d
do to the fiscal note.

SENATOR DONLEY responded, "W have been working wth the
Departnment of Admi nistration for about 9 to 10 nonths on this

bill and developing the fiscal note and the study. This is
totally different than anything they've seen before. so it's
very hard for ne to predict what this will do to the fiscal
note...."

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES observed that SB 85 was a Senate bill that
is now before the House. She asked if it has a referral to the
House Fi nance Conmitt ee.

SENATOR DONLEY confirned that it does.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked if a representative from the
adm nistration was present, and if she could ask a question of
t hat person.

Nunber 1286

DAVE  STEWART, Per sonnel Manager, D vision of Per sonnel ,
Department of Adm nistration, canme forward to testify.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES began by clarifying that she has no
phi | osophi cal opposition to Anendnent 1. Her concern is that it
is enlarging the scope of the study, and it appears to her that
there would be sone increase in the cost of it. She asked if
the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee were to adopt the
amendnent and nove SB 65 out of committee today, what would the
adm nistration do about the fiscal note by the tinme the bill
reached the Finance Commttee, to which it has a referral. She
said she wanted to nmake sure that commttee had a true picture
of the financial inpact.

MR. STEWART replied that in that case, the adm nistration would
have to go back and adjust the fiscal note to reflect the
i ncreased scope.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked if he had any idea what the increase
m ght be?

MR. STEWART replied, "I sure don't." In response to her urging
himto estimate, he said it would |ikely double.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- April 12, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said that is what she woul d guess because,

"It's a whole new scope.” But as long as she is assured that
the fiscal note wll be revised, she has no objection to the
amendnent .

Number 1135

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON coment ed t hat she t hi nks what
Representative Hayes wants to do is wonderful, and should be
| ooked at. However, he could introduce a new bill to study
racial discrimnation, which mght be done in conjunction wth
t he gender study proposed by SB 65.

CHAIR COCGHI LL noted that the original testinony was that SB 65
addressed gender equity, and that the anmendnent changes the
scope trenmendously.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said he understood what Representative
W1l son was proposing, and explained that he was sinply passing
on an anmendnent a co-sponsor had requested.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES wondered in a study on equal pay for equa
wor k, "What trunps the decision, race or gender?"

MR. STEWART answered, "Both."

SENATOR DONLEY said the original bill was designed just to study
gender. "The trick is, you |look for suspect classes to start,
so a gender study |ooks for classes domnated by a particular
gender, and a racial study l|ooks for classes dom nated by a
particular race," he said. Each study goes on to make sure that
in those <classes, the group being studied is not being
di scrim nated against. Looking at both neans adding another
vari abl e, he expl ai ned.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON said she had changed her mnd and now
thinks that the anendnent really expands the intent of SB 65,
and she thinks racial bias should be examned in a separate
study rather than in a conbined study, but that she wll vyield
to the sponsor of the |egislation.

SENATOR DONLEY said he felt like he was stuck in a difficult
spot "because M. Stewart's been wonderful to work wth; the
adm nistration has really been hel pful on this, and we' ve worked
together for eight nonths now ... and it took a major effort on
their part to identify just how they thought they mght do this
study and to give us a fiscal note on the subject, and there's a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- April 12, 2001



| ot of thought and we did a |Iot of research on the Internet and
with other states of how they've done studies and what private
contractors were available out there to do a study, but all that
research was based on gender...."

MR. STEWART added, "None of our inquiries included race or any
ot her factor."

SENATOR DONLEY said he felt confident about the nunmbers in the
current fiscal note, but he did not know what he would say to
the Finance Conmittee if there were another fiscal note. At the
sanme time, he said, he really did not oppose doing this. "It's
just that it could inject a lot of uncertainty,” he said. He
noted that he did not know how t he Senate woul d react.

Number 0754

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said he supported the idea behind the
anendnent, and with the study on gender set up, he wondered if
it mght be less expensive to "piggyback” a race study [rather
than to conduct a separate study on race].

SENATOR DONLEY deferred to the adm ni strati on.

MR. STEWART said it probably would be |ess expensive to conbine
the two studies rather than to conduct tw separate ones.
However, he thought it would be a little nore difficult to study
equal pay for equal work in relation to race, He noted that
there was alnost 40 years of history of state and federal
| egislation related to race, and not so nuch related to gender
In addition, the gender gap report from the Departnent of Labor
provi des sonme specific targets with respect to gender-related
pay issues, and there is not a conparable starting point for
i ssues of race. He said he thought conbining the two would nean
redesi gning the whole study, although he was not reluctant to do
So.

Number 0502

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said that regarding a study on equal pay
for equal work in relation to race, "If we're not doing that, we
should be doing it." He understood Senator Donley's disconfort
with the idea of changing his bill to include that, but said he
t hought the anendnent was a valid one and that he would vote for
it.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- April 12, 2001



CHAI R COGHI LL asked if accommodati ons made for Al aska Natives as
part of efforts to inprove the econony in rural Al aska would
affect this type of study.

SENATOR DONLEY said it could. State regulations allow for a
| ocal hire preference in rural capital projects, rural jobs, and
other situations like that, he said. There's also the state's
affirmative action program that permts hiring outside the
strict nmerit system based on affirmative action goals. He said
that was one of the conplicating factors in studying racial
equity, "because there are tinmes when you intentionally override
a racial balance ... Unlike overriding a pay balance; it's a
different issue.”

CHAIR COGHI LL said that was his concern, running into quite an
array of variables because of affirmative action and |ocal hire,

SENATOR DONLEY said a racial study will be challenging because

of the large indigenous population and its geographic
di stribution. He noted that certain job classes found in nore
renote areas are likely to be domnated by indigenous folks

because that's where they tend to live.

MR. STEWART added that there are sone job classes that exist
solely in rural areas.

CHAIR COGHI LL wondered how a study would address a situation
like that in Barrow, where there are many corporate enployers,
including the Native corporation structure and the city
structure, and also an unusually large Filipino popul ation.

Nunmber 0193

SENATOR DONLEY said he thought it would be a good idea to do a
study to make sure that in state enploynent, there is no

di scrimnation based on either race or gender. "But 1'm going
to need help on this [the House] side because I'mstill going to
have to go to your Finance Conmittee and explain why it's going
to cost nore and 1'd need the help of the admnistration to

craft the study...."

CHAIR COGH LL asked, "Could we cone back and ask the
adm nistration to give us not just a fiscal note ... [but also]
a scope of what this would do, because it certainly changes the
scope?" He thought it mght be advisable to have that

i nformati on before noving HB 65.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -32- April 12, 2001



SENATOR DONLEY suggested that there are going to be two nore
opportunities, in the Finance Cormttee and also of the floor of
the House, to address the issue [of a race discrimnation
st udy] . He expressed wllingness to work with the legislators
who are interested and with the administration to try to get
that information together before HB 65 conmes up for a hearing in
t he Fi nance Comm ttee "so we coul d tal k about it
intelligently...."

TAPE 01-39, SIDE A

CHAIR COGHILL said he would rather "send it up clean" and with a
scope that is well defined and easily quantified in terns of
cost.

SENATOR DONLEY said he thought there mght be nenbers of the
public who would I|ike to testify on the idea of a race
di scrim nation study.

Nunber 1049

REPRESENTATI VE FATE noted that eight nonths of work had gone
into HB 65. He expressed concern about whether changing its
scope would nean the study wouldn't start wuntil the next
| egi sl ative session. He asked Senator Donley what he expected
as a timeline.

SENATOR DONLEY responded, "I wanted to give the adm nistration
time to put together and do it right, so we've got a pretty
liberal tine franme in the bill, so | don't think the tine factor

is a problem..."

CHAI R COGHI LL suggested noving things along. He asked if the
amendnent was mai nt ai ned.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES sai d yes.

Number 0133

REPRESENTATI VE FATE called for the question on the anendnent. A
roll call vote was taken. Representatives Crawford, Hayes,
Stevens, and WIson voted for Amendnent 1. Representatives Fate
and Coghill voted against Amendnent 1. Representative Janes was
absent. Therefore, Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

Nunber 0215

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- April 12, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE HAYES noved to report CSSB 65(FIN) as anended out
of the House State Affairs Standing Commttee w th individual
reconmendati ons and the acconpanying $50,000 fiscal note "which
wi |l probably change.” There being no objection, HCS CSSB
65(STA) was noved from conmmttee.

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:59
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 34- April 12, 2001



